
TENNESSEE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

FEBRUARY 23, 2022 

AGENDA 

1. Call meeting to order

2. Approval of minutes from the TLDA meeting of December 20, 2021

3. Consider for approval the following Clean Water Loan:

 SRF Base Principal Total Interest

Loan Forgiveness Request Rate Term

Chattanooga, SRF 2020-440-01 19,000,000$    -$   19,000,000$    0.88% 20

4. Consider for approval the following Drinking Water Loans:

 SRF Base Principal Total Interest

Loan Forgiveness Request Rate Term

Hiwassee UC (Bradley County), DW7 2021-232 A 1,459,450$   -$   1,459,450$   0.81% 20

Hiwassee UC (McMinn County), DW7 2021-232 B 1,459,450$   -$   1,459,450$   0.81% 20

Ocoee UD, DWF 2021-242 1,000,000$   -$   1,000,000$   0.96% 20

5. Consideration of a request from the Ocoee Utility District to issue Water and Wastewater

Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2022, in an amount not to exceed

$25,000,000 on parity with its outstanding SRF loan agreements

6. Report on the notification from the City of Algood submitted to comply with TLDA SRF

Policy and Guidance for Borrowers

7. Adjourn



 
 TENNESSEE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

December 20, 2021 

 

The Tennessee Local Development Authority (the “TLDA”) met on Monday, December 20, 2021, at 11:35 a.m. in 

the House Hearing Room I, First Floor, Cordell Hull Building, Nashville, Tennessee. The Honorable Tre Hargett, 

Secretary of State, was present and presided over the meeting. 

 

The following members were also present:  

  

The Honorable Jason E. Mumpower, Comptroller of the Treasury 

Kevin Bradley, Proxy for the Honorable David H. Lillard, Jr., State Treasureri 

Commissioner Butch Eley, Department of Finance and Administration  

Ms. Paige Brown, House Appointee 

 

The following members were absent: 

 

The Honorable Bill Lee, Governor  

Mr. Gary Cordell, Senate Appointee 

 

Recognizing a quorum present, Mr. Hargett called the meeting to order. 

 

Mr. Hargett stated that the first item on the agenda was approval of the minutes from the October 25, 2021, TLDA 

meeting. Mr. Hargett asked for a motion to approve the minutes. Mr. Mumpower made a motion to approve the 

minutes, and Ms. Brown seconded the motion. Mr. Hargett asked all in favor to say aye and all opposed to say no. 

By a vote of 5 – 0, the motion carried, and the minutes were unanimously approved.  

 

Mr. Hargett stated that the next item on the agenda was a Resolution of Appreciation to Mr. Pat Wolfe. He stated 

that the TLDA had issued a Resolution of Appreciation to Mr. Pat Wolfe to express its gratitude and appreciation 

for his dedication and exemplary service as a member of the Authority.  He stated that the Resolution of 

Appreciation would not require action by the TLDA board.  

 

Mr. Hargett stated that the next item on the agenda was consideration and approval of a Drinking Water State 

Revolving Fund (DWSRF) loan request. He recognized Mr. Adeniyi Bakare, SRF Program Manager for the 

Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC), to present the loan request. Mr. Bakare first 

presented the Report on Funds Available for Loan Obligation for the DWSRF Loan Program. He stated the 

unobligated fund balance was $65,439,208 as of August 23, 2021. He stated that since that time, the unobligated 

balance had increased by $100,000 with the return of previous (unused) funding from the Brownsville Energy 

Authority. Upon approval of the loan request to be presented totaling $255,000, the remaining funds available for 

loan obligations would be $65,284,208. He then presented the DWSRF loan request. 

 

• Camden (DW7 2021-237) Requesting $255,000 ($127,500 Loan; $127,500 principal forgiveness) for an 

asset management plan (develop a water distribution system asset management plan – phase 1); 

recommended interest rate of 0.10% based on the Ability to Pay Index (ATPI); Priority ranking 11 of 43 

(FY2020); Term: 5 years 

  

Mr. Eley made a motion to approve the loan, and Ms. Brown seconded the motion. Mr. Hargett inquired if there 

was any discussion. Hearing none, he asked all in favor to say aye and all opposed to say no. By a vote of 5 – 0, the 

motion carried, and the loan was unanimously approved. 

 

Mr. Hargett stated that the next item on the agenda was consideration and approval of a Clean Water State Revolving 

Fund (CWSRF) loan request. He called upon Mr. Bakare to present the loan request. Mr. Bakare first presented the 

Report on Funds Available for Loan Obligation for the CWSRF Loan Program. He stated the unobligated fund 

balance was $9,982,396 as of October 25, 2021. He stated that since that time, the unobligated balance had increased 
 

i Proxy letter was received after the meeting was held; therefore, this member’s votes are nullified.  



 
by $415,245 with the return of previous (unused) funding from the Towns of Chapel Hill and Jasper. Upon approval 

of the loan request to be presented totaling $2,500,000, the remaining funds available for loan obligations would be 

$7,897,641. He then presented the CWSRF loan request. 

 

• Metropolitan Government of Lynchburg, Moore County (Metro Lynchburg) (CG8 2022-463) 

Requesting $2,500,000 for infiltration and inflow correction (Rehabilitation of approximately 20,000 linear 

feet (LF) of sewer lines and lateral connections by open cut replacement and cured-in-place pipe methods 

and lining of associated manholes); recommended interest rate of 1.03% based on the ATPI; Priority 

ranking 41 of 64 (FY2020); Term: 20 years.  

 

Mr. Bakare stated that Metro Lynchburg’s audit report was filed timely but that it had an adverse opinion. 

He explained that the adverse opinion was due to the Water and Sewer Department not having its financial 

records available when the audit was completed. He further stated that an action plan had been submitted, 

and a corrective action explanation had been sent to the Comptroller’s office. 

 

Mr. Mumpower made a motion to approve the loan, and Mr. Eley seconded the motion. Mr. Hargett inquired if 

there was any discussion. Hearing none, he asked all in favor to say aye and all opposed to say no. By a vote of 5 – 

0, the motion carried, and the loan was unanimously approved.ii 

 

Mr. Hargett stated that the next item on the agenda was the report on the notification from the Town of Livingston  

submitted to comply with TLDA SRF Policy and Guidance for Borrowers. He called upon Ms. Thompson to present 

the report. Ms. Thompson stated that a notice was received from the Town of Livingston stating that it intended to 

issue its Series 2021 Water and Sewer System Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds to currently fund its outstanding 

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds that would mature in December 2033. She further stated that 

the Town acknowledged that the Refunding Bonds would be issued subordinate to its outstanding SRF loans to 

comply with the TLDA SRF Policy and Guidance. She stated that this was a notification and would not require 

action by the TLDA board. Mr. Hargett asked if there were any questions about the report. Hearing none, and with 

no further action necessary, he moved on to the next agenda item. 

 

Mr. Hargett stated that the next item of business was the report on the notification from the Town of Oakland 

submitted to comply with TLDA SRF Policy and Guidance for Borrowers. He called upon Ms. Thompson to present 

the report. Ms. Thompson stated that a notice was received from the Town of Oakland stating that it intended to 

issue its Series 2021 Sewer System Revenue and Tax Capital Outlay Notes to finance sewer system improvements, 

specifically for the wastewater treatment plant expansion. The Town of Oakland acknowledged that the Notes 

would be issued subordinate to its outstanding SRF loans to comply with the TLDA SRF Policy and Guidance. In 

addition, she stated that the Town intended to issue the notes in December and requested that the 45-day notice of 

written notification be waived. She stated that this was a notification and would not require action by the TLDA 

board. Mr. Hargett asked if there were any questions about the report. Hearing none, and with no further action 

necessary, he moved on to the next agenda item.   

 

Mr. Hargett stated that the next item of business was the report on the notification from the Metropolitan 

Government of Nashville and Davidson County submitted to comply with TLDA SRF Policy and Guidance for 

Borrowers. He called upon Ms. Thompson to present the report. Ms. Thompson stated that a notice was received 

from the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County stating that it intended to revise its existing 

Commercial Paper Programs and proposed to issue the Notes for the purpose of providing interim financing for 

water and sewer system improvements and extensions. She further stated that Metro acknowledged that the Notes 

would be secured by a pledge of the issuer’s water and sewer system revenues and would be subordinate to the 

pledge of such revenues in favor of the issuer’s outstanding SRF loans as required by the TLDA SRF Policy and 

Guidance for Borrowers. She stated that this was a notification and would not require action by the TLDA board. 

Mr. Hargett asked if there were any questions about the report. There were no questions. This report was for 

information only. No board action was needed. 

  

 
 

ii Mr. Mumpower excused himself from the remainder of the meeting 



 
Hearing no other business, Mr. Eley made a motion to adjourn the meeting, and Ms. Brown seconded the motion. 

Mr. Hargett asked all in favor to say aye and all opposed to say no. By a vote of 4 – 0, the meeting was adjourned.  

 

Approved on this _____ day of __________, 2021. 

 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 Sandra Thompson 

 Assistant Secretary  



Unobligated Balance as of December 20, 2021 7,897,641$            

Increases: Loan Number Amount

Treasury Interest FY 2021 303,914$                             

Interest Payments FY 2021 9,926,939$                          

Principal Repayments FY 2021 141,445,858$                      

151,676,711$       

Unobligated Balance as of February 23, 2022 159,574,352$       

Decreases: Loan Number  Amount

City of Chattanooga SRF 2020-440-01 19,000,000$      

(19,000,000)$        

Remaining Funds Available for Loan Obligations as February 23, 2022 140,574,352$       

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION

DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES

Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) Loan Program

Funds Available for Loan Obligation

February 23, 2022



FACT SHEET 
February 23, 2022 

Borrower: City of Chattanooga 
Project Number: SRF 2020-440-01 

Requested SRF Funding: $19,000,000 
Term:  20 years 
Rate:  0.88% = 1.10% x 80% (Tier 3) 

Project: 

WWTP Improvements and I/I Correction (Installation of approximately 900 LF of conveyance piping at 
the Moccasin Bend WWTP; replace approximately 2,200 LF of 30-inch diameter Citico force main; and 
the construction of a 30MG equalization basin, 20 MG pump station, and associated appurtenances). 

Total Project Cost: $39,152,720 

Project Funding: 

SRF Loan Principal    $19,000,000 
Local Funds $  5,152,720 
Other Funds (SRF 2020-440) $15,000,000 

County:  Hamilton County 

Consulting Engineer: Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 

Priority Ranking List: FY 2019 

Priority Ranking: 6,18, and 64 of 831 

Public Meeting:  05/28/2020 

Financial Information: 

$100,934,056 

$63.55 

$63.55 

N/A 

5,000 gal/month 

182,800 

1/31/2022 (Late)2 

09/21/2021 

Operating Revenues:  

Current Rate:  

Financial Review Rate:  

Effective Rates, if applicable:  

Residential User Charge: Customer 

Base:  

Audit Report Filed: 

Initial Financial Sufficiency Review: 

Updated Financial Sufficiency Review:  02/08/2022 

The financial sufficiency review indicates that revenues and rates are sufficient to repay its SRF loan(s). 

1 The Project ranked #6, #18, and #64 of 83 on the Fiscal Year 2019 Priority Ranking List (PRL). 
2 Chattanooga submitted late audit report justification letter to comptroller’s office. The letter included in the loan documents. 



FACT SHEET 
February 23, 2022 

 

 

Additional Security 

The borrower pledges its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to the maximum 
annual debt service (MADS) requirements under the loan agreement.  

The SSTs received by the borrower from the state in the prior fiscal year:  $28,563,255 

MADS:  Prior Obligations: $17,468,200 

Proposed loan(s): 
SRF 2020-440-01 $   1,036,398 
Totals    $ 18,504,598 

 
MADS as a percentage of SSTs:  64.78% 

  











Unobligated Balance as of December 20, 2021 65,284,208$         

Increases: Loan Number Amount

FFY 2021 EPA Capitalization Grant (project dollars) 16,050,680$       

FFY 2021 State match budgeted of total required 3,856,800$         

Interest Payments FY 2021 1,482,397$         

Principal Repayments FY 2021 26,668,433$       

Treasury Interest FY 2021 60,994$               

48,119,304$         

Unobligated Balance as of February 23, 2022 113,403,512$       

Decreases: Loan Number Loan Amount

Hiwassee Utilities Commission and Bradley County DW7 2021-232A 1,459,450$         

Hiwassee Utilities Commission and McMinn County DW7 2021-232B 1,459,450$         

Ocoee Utility District DWF 2021-242 1,000,000$         

(3,918,900)$          

Remaining Funds Available for Loan Obligations as February 23,2022 109,484,612$       

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION

DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Loan Program

Funds Available for Loan Obligation

February 23, 2022



FACT SHEET 
February 23, 2021 

Borrower: 
Project Number: 
Requested SRF Funding: 
Term:  
Rate:  

Hiwassee Utilities Commission and Bradley 
County DWF 2021-232 A 

$1,459,450 
20 years 
0.81% = (1.01% x 80%) (Tier 3) 

Project: 

WTP Improvements (Convert the disinfection system from chlorine to sodium hypochlorite; 
construction of a new chemical storage building; improvements to the compressed air system; and 
the installation of new control valves and instrumentation). 

Total Project Cost: $2,918,900 

Project Funding: 

SRF Loan Principal $1,459,450 
Local Funds $  -0-
Other Funds (McMinn County 
DWF 2021-232)  $1,459,450 

County:  Bradley and McMinn Counties 

Consulting Engineer: Owen & White Inc. 

Priority Ranking List: FY 2020 

Priority Ranking: 29 of 481 

Public Meeting:  02/01/2021 

Financial Information: 

$3,340,576 

see footnote 22 

see footnote 2 

see footnote 2 

see footnote 2 

see footnote 33 

01/17/2022 (Late) 4 

07/20/2021 

Operating Revenues:  

Current Rate:  

Financial Review Rate:  

Effective Rates, if applicable:  

Residential User Charge: Customer 

Base:  

Audit Report Filed: 

Initial Financial Sufficiency Review: 

Updated Financial Sufficiency Review:  02/02/2022 

1 The Project ranked #29 of 48 on the Fiscal Year 2020 Priority Ranking List. 
2 Hiwassee Utilities Commission rate structure is made up of two billing components: Demand Charge (fixed charge to cover 

long term fixed costs) and Commodity Charge (based on the water delivered). They are increasing the rates by 2% yearly with 
FY26 estimated to be $3,584,755. 

3 Hiwassee Utilities Commission does not use residential customers. Their customers are the following areas that have 
contracts with them: Athens, Cleveland, Riceville, McMinn County, and Calhoun/Charleston.  

4 Hiwassee Utility Commission submitted a late audit justification letter to Comptroller’s Office and is included in the loan 
documents. 



FACT SHEET 
February 23, 2021 

The financial sufficiency review indicates that revenues and rates are sufficient to repay its SRF loan(s). 

Additional Security 

The borrower pledges its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to the maximum 
annual debt service (MADS) requirements under the loan agreement.  

The SSTs received by the borrower from the state in the prior fiscal year:  $3,657,283 

MADS: Prior Obligations: $      -0-

Proposed loan(s) 
DWF 2021-232 A $  79,067 
DWF 2021-232 B $  79,067 
Totals   $158,134 

MADS as a percentage of SSTs: 4.32% 



A





A



 

Wedgewood Accounting, PLLC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
WEDGEWOOD OFFICE PARK 
4395 NORTH OCOEE STREET 

                                                                  CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE 37312                                                   MEMBERS 
WILLIAM B. KIRKSEY, CPA        ---------                                            AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF 
MARK A. LAY, CPA                       TELEPHONE:  423-476-5581                    CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
SCOTT D. HALL, CPA                         FACSIMILE: 423-472-9893                     
ANGELA K. RITCHEY, CPA                                                                                                                                          TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 

BRANDON H. BARNES, CPA                            CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS          

                                                     
          

 

 
January 10, 2022 
 
 
Mrs. Sushuma Pedireddi, Grants Analyst 
State of Tennessee – SRF Loan Program 
William Snodgrass, Tennessee Tower 
312 Rosa Park Avenue, 12th Floor 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 
 
Re: Hiwassee Utilities delinquent report filing 
 
Dear Mrs. Pedireddi:  
 
Our firm has been preparing the audit report for Hiwassee Utilities for more than 25 years.  The 
delayed report filing has been due to COVID and staffing issues in recent years.  We have been 
unable to retain the same staff for the years 2017 - 2020; therefore, someone new is working on 
this project each year, which is increasing the completion time for this project.  The delays are 
not due to Hiwassee Utilities, as they are always responsive and expedient in their process to get 
us information.  Therefore, this issue is beyond their control, and as a partner in the audit firm, 
we are trying to correct this, but as we understand, we are not alone, as discussions with other 
CPA firms have proven this is a nationwide issue. 
 
Please let me know if you need any additional information. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Scott D. Hall, CPA 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

January 11, 2022 

 

Ms. Teresa Torbett 

Hiwassee Utilities Commission 

3973 Chatata Valley Road 

Charleston, Tennessee 37310 

 

Dear Ms. Torbett: 

 

During the review of the Hiwassee Utilities Commission (the “Commission”) State Revolving Fund (SRF) 

loan application, the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC) observed that the 

Commission had not filed its fiscal year 2021 audit report within six months after fiscal year end.  The 

Commission provided a letter of explanation from Wedgewood Accounting, PLLC (Wedgewood), its CPA 

firm, regarding the delinquency to the Division of State Government Finance that serves as staff to the 

Tennessee Local Development Authority (TLDA). 

 

Wedgewood cited that the reason for the late submission was because of the COVID-19 pandemic and 

staffing issues within the audit firm and that they were working to resolve the deficiency.  Please note that 

the audit contract does not provide for filing annual audit reports later than six months after the fiscal year 

end, and the Comptroller’s Division of Local Government Audit (LGA) did not grant permission to extend 

the contracted filing deadline.  

 

The SRF loan agreement and state law require local governments to file an annual audit report within six 

months after fiscal year end. Failure to timely file reports may delay, or result in disapproval of, SRF loan 

approvals and funding requests. At the discretion of TDEC, the Commission’s loan application will be 

presented for consideration for approval at a future TLDA meeting with the expectation that the 

Commission will develop a plan to file its report on time. Please consult with Wedgewood as they work to 

resolve this deficiency. In addition, contact LGA if you need additional guidance or clarification on audit 

contract requirements for your specific situation. 

 

Information on the SRF program’s audit filing requirement is contained in the TLDA’s SRF Policy and 

Guidance for Borrowers which can be obtained online at: 

https://www.comptroller.tn.gov/boards/tennessee-local-development-authority/tlda-

information/policies.html.  

 

Please let me know if you have any questions in this regard. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Sandra W. Thompson 

Director 

Comptroller of the Treasury 

Division of State Government Finance 

Assistant Secretary to the TLDA 

https://www.comptroller.tn.gov/boards/tennessee-local-development-authority/tlda-information/policies.html
https://www.comptroller.tn.gov/boards/tennessee-local-development-authority/tlda-information/policies.html


FACT SHEET 
February 23, 2022 

Borrower: 
Project Number: 
Requested SRF Funding: 
Term:  
Rate:  

Hiwassee Utilities Commission and McMinn County 
DWF 2021-232 B 

$1,459,450 
20 years 
0.81% = (1.01% x 80%) (Tier 3) 

Project: 

WTP Improvements (Convert the disinfection system from chlorine to sodium hypochlorite; 
construction of a new chemical storage building; improvements to the compressed air system; and 
the installation of new control valves and instrumentation). 

Total Project Cost: $2,918,900 

Project Funding: 

SRF Loan Principal $1,459,450 
Local Funds $  -0-
Other Funds (Bradley County 
DWF 2021-232)  $1,459,450 

County:  Bradley and McMinn Counties 

Consulting Engineer: Owen & White Inc. 

Priority Ranking List: FY 2020 

Priority Ranking: 29 of 481 

Public Meeting:  02/01/2021 

Financial Information: 

$3,340,576 

see footnote 22 

see footnote 2 

see footnote 2 

see footnote 2 

see footnote 33 

01/17/2022 (Late) 4 

07/20/2021 

Operating Revenues:  

Current Rate:  

Financial Review Rate:  

Effective Rates, if applicable:  

Residential User Charge: Customer 

Base:  

Audit Report Filed: 

Initial Financial Sufficiency Review: 

Updated Financial Sufficiency Review:  02/02/2022 

1 The Project ranked #29 of 48 on the Fiscal Year 2020 Priority Ranking List. 
2 Hiwassee Utilities Commission rate structure is made up of two billing components: Demand Charge (fixed charge to cover 

long term fixed costs) and Commodity Charge (based on the water delivered). They are increasing the rates by 2% yearly with 
FY26 estimated to be $3,584,755 

3 Hiwassee Utilities Commission does not use residential customers. Their customers are the following areas that have contracts 
with them: Athens, Cleveland, Riceville, McMinn County, and Calhoun/Charleston. 

4 Hiwassee Utility Commission sent late audit submission justification letter to Comptroller’s Office and letter included into loan 
documents. 



FACT SHEET 
February 23, 2022 

  

The financial sufficiency review indicates that revenues and rates are sufficient to repay its SRF loan(s).  

 

Additional Security 

The borrower pledges its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to the maximum 
annual debt service (MADS) requirements under the loan agreement.  

The SSTs received by the borrower from the state in the prior fiscal year:  $3,109,991 

MADS:  Prior Obligations: $         -0- 

Proposed loan(s) 
DWF 2021-232 B $  79,067 
DWF 2021-232 A $  79,067 
Totals    $158,134 

 
MADS as a percentage of SSTs:  5.08% 

  



B





B



FACT SHEET 
February 23, 2022 

Borrower: Ocoee Utility District 
Project Number: DWF 2021-242 

Requested SRF Funding: $1,000,000 
Term:  20 years 
Rate:  0.96% = 1.20% x 80% (Tier 3) 

Project: 

WTP Improvements (Construction of a new 500,000 gallon clear well at the Carpenter Springs WTP). 

Total Project Cost: $1,000,000 

Project Funding: 

SRF Loan Principal $1,000,000 
Local Funds  $  -0-
Other Funds  $      -0-

County:  Bradley and Polk Counties 

Consulting Engineer: OHM Advisors 

Priority Ranking List: FY 2020 

Priority Ranking: 32 of 481 

Public Meeting:  05/18/2021 

Financial Information: 

$5,139,200 

$53.00 

$53.00 

N/A 

5,000 gal/month 

7,820 

12/29/2021 (Timely) 

04/20/2021 

Operating Revenues:  

Current Rate:  

Financial Review Rate:  

Effective Rates, if applicable:  

Residential User Charge: Customer 

Base:  

Audit Report Filed: 

Initial Financial Sufficiency Review: 

Updated Financial Sufficiency Review:  02/08/2022 

The financial sufficiency review indicates that revenues and rates are sufficient to repay its SRF loan(s). 

1 The Project ranked #32 of 48 on the Fiscal Year 2020 Priority Ranking List (PRL). 



FACT SHEET 
February 23, 2022 

Additional Security 

A security deposit equal to one year’s maximum annual debt service is required to be deposited with 
the TLDA before any funds are disbursed to the borrower. The anticipated required security deposit 
for this loan is $54,973. 







 

 

February 09, 2022 

 

Ocoee Utility District 

Request for TLDA Approval to Issue Additional Debt 

 

The Ocoee Utility District (the “District”) is requesting approval from the Tennessee Local 

Development Authority (the “TLDA”) to issue a Water and Wastewater Revenue Refunding and 

Improvement Bonds, Series 2022 (the “Series 2022 Bonds”) on parity with its outstanding State 

Revolving Fund (SRF) loan agreements.  Request for approval is required by provisions set forth 

in the SRF loan agreements and guidelines set forth in the TLDA/SRF Policy and Guidance for 

Borrowers.  The proposed debt will be issued in an amount not to exceed $25,000,000. 

   

The following provides details about the transaction: 
 

1. The requestor is a: 

 

_X_ Utility District or Water/Wastewater Authority planning to issue Revenue Debt 

 Will the proposed debt be secured by revenues other than revenues of the 

water/wastewater system (e.g. electric, gas)?  ___ Yes _X_ No 
 

____  Municipality (town/city/county) planning to issue: 

 ____  General Obligation Debt 

 ____  Revenue Debt – Will the proposed debt be secured by revenues other than  

  revenues of the water/wastewater system (e.g. electric, gas)? ___Yes ___ No  

 
 

2. Lien Position: 

 

_X__ The borrower is requesting to issue the Series 2022 Bonds on parity with its 

outstanding SRF loan(s).  

_____  The borrower is requesting to subordinate the lien position of its outstanding SRF 

debt to the lien position of its new debt issuance.  

_____ The borrower is not requesting a modification of lien position and the proposed debt will 

be issued subordinate to the SRF debt.  

.  

 



 

 

3. The purpose of the proposed debt issuance is: 

 

_X_  Refunding  

_X_  New Money 

 

4. Description and Additional Information: 

 

The District proposes to issue the Series 2022 Bonds to provide funding for the following 

purposes: 

 

• Refund the entire balance, principal and interest, of all outstanding maturities of the 

District's Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2013 (the "Series 

2013 Bonds") and its Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 (the "Series 2016 

Bonds"; the Series 2013 Bonds and the Series 2016 Bonds are collectively and severally 

referred to as the "Refunded Bonds"). Note: All maturities of the Refunded Bonds are 

currently callable at the price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption of the 

Bonds. 

 

The District proposes to issue the refunding component of the Bonds to achieve a cost 

savings to the public, on a net present value basis, at the approximate level of 

$528,536.06, or 5.024% of the outstanding principal of the Refunded Bonds. 

 

• Provide $10,000,000 to fund costs of design, permitting, and construction funds for capital 

improvement projects to the District's water system and wastewater system. 

 

• Payment of costs of issuance associated with the issuance of Series 2022 Bonds 

 

 

5. The debt rating of the borrower is: 

 

Please indicate N/R if not rated. 

 

_N/R_  Moody’s     

_A+_ Standard and Poor’s 

_N/R_ Fitch 

 

 



 

 

6. The following SRF loans are currently authorized/outstanding: 

 

 
 

7. Compliance with SRF Loan Agreement: 

 

a. Timely repayments [4.(a)]  

 

_X_ Yes ____ No 

 

b. Security Deposit (UDs and Authorities) [8.] 

 

__X__ Yes ____ No  

 

Amount on deposit: $ 150,227 

 

c. GAAP Accounting and Audited Annual Financial Statement Requirement 

[7.(g) and (m)(2)] 

 

The District timely filed its audit report for FY 2021.  

 

_X__ Yes ___    No 

 

d. Sufficient Revenues [7.(k)]  

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the District reported operating income for 

the Water Fund of $1,123,745 and a positive change in net position of $925,997 in 

its audited financial statements.  As reported on the cash flow statement, debt service 

Borrower Ocoee Utility District

Date 1/31/2022

Loan Type Loan # Status Disbursements Available to Draw

% Principal 

Forgiveness

Edison Balance

@1/31/2022 MADS*

Water DW6 19-210 Repayment 1,000,000                          -                                20% 744,851                      46,236                           

Water DWF 19-211 Construction 1,679,716                          119,584                       0% 1,679,716                  103,991                         

Water DWF 21-242 Pending** -                                       1,000,000                    0% -                               54,973                           

205,200                         

*MADS is an estimate until final expenses have been determined

*Before funds are disbursed on a loan, a security deposit equal to MADS is required to be deposited with the TLDA

**TDEC is recommending this loan for approval at the same  TLDA meeting as this request, and it is included in the District's request for parity.



 

 

payments for fiscal year 2021 were $1,295,243 consisting of principal payments of 

$784,632 and interest payments of $510,611. 

As of fiscal year end 2021, the District reported $467,748 in unrestricted cash and 

$1,678,400 in cash restricted for operation and maintenance and debt service. 

 

__X__ Yes ____ No 

 

e. Debt Service Coverage Ratios [7.(l) and (m)(4)] 

 

The current and projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio is equal to or exceeds 1.2 

times. 

_X__ Yes  ____ No 

 

If no, include a schedule of revised rates and fees.   ___ Included    _X_ N/A 

 

Most Recent Fiscal Year (m)(3): 

The District’s debt service coverage ratio was 1.62x for fiscal year 2021 and is 

estimated to be 1.78x for fiscal year 2022 (calculated by the District in its 

submission). The District has met the debt service coverage requirement for fiscal 

year 2021. 

 

Next Three Fiscal Years After Debt Issuance (m)(4): 

The District prepared forecasted debt service coverage ratios and projects that it will 

meet the debt service coverage requirement with estimated and projected debt service 

to net revenues ranging from 1.84x to 2.20x for fiscal years 2023-2025 

 

f. Is the entity currently under the jurisdiction of the Utility Management Review 

Board (UMRB) or the Water and Wastewater Financing Board (WWFB)? 

[7.(n)] 

 

____ Yes _X__ No 

 

If yes, reason for referral:   ___ Water Loss  ___  Financial Distress    

 



 

 

If the reason is for financial distress, include a schedule of revised rates and fees 

along with a copy of the corrective action order from the respective board.   

 ___ Included   ___ N/A 

 

8. State-Shared Taxes (SST): (Towns, Cities, Counties):   N/A 

 

$__________________  Received in prior fiscal year 

$__________________  Total Maximum Annual Debt Service 

$__________________  Unobligated SSTs 

 

 

9. Conclusion 

 

Based on our analysis, it appears the District meets the TLDA’s criteria to issue the Series 

2022 Bonds on parity with its SRF loans. 

 

Attachment: 

 

Debt Service Coverage Ratios (provided by the District) 



2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Operating Revenues 5,139,200 4,854,385 4,254,467 3,772,294 3,738,159 3,449,524 3,195,693 2,975,760 2,808,578 2,860,418

Operating Expenses (3,122,348) (3,123,602) (2,597,199) (2,404,160) (2,280,577) (1,888,639) (1,702,785) (1,805,042) (1,748,641) (1,659,033)

Interest Income 6,515 26,785 39,785 20,207 15,817 18,009 26,518 13,458 2,873 12,020

Revenues Available for Debt Service 2,023,367 1,757,568 1,697,053 1,388,341 1,473,399 1,578,894 1,519,426 1,184,176 1,062,810 1,213,405

Annual Debt Service 1,245,364 1,245,364 1,233,704 1,236,296 1,241,648 1,236,618 732,283 737,950 697,226 669,321

Debt Service Coverage Ratios 1.6247 1.4113 1.3756 1.1230 1.1866 1.2768 2.0749 1.6047 1.5243 1.8129

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031

Operating Revenues 5,396,160 6,205,584 7,136,422 7,850,064 8,635,070 9,066,824 9,520,165 9,996,173 10,495,982 11,020,781

Operating Expenses (3,216,018) (3,312,499) (3,411,874) (3,514,230) (3,619,657) (3,728,247) (3,840,094) (3,955,297) (4,073,956) (4,196,175)

Interest Income 6,580 6,646 6,646 6,712 6,780 6,847 6,916 6,985 7,055 7,125

Revenues Available for Debt Service 2,186,722 2,899,731 3,731,194 4,342,546 5,022,193 5,345,424 5,686,986 6,047,861 6,429,081 6,831,732

Annual Debt Service 1,226,690 1,573,953 1,625,500 1,972,405 1,944,795 1,951,614 1,913,494 1,914,937 1,915,287 1,919,837

Debt Service Coverage Ratios 1.7826 1.8423 2.2954 2.2017 2.5824 2.7390 2.9720 3.1583 3.3567 3.5585

Note: Assumes Increases in Total Operating Revenues of 5.00% FY2022; 15% FY2023+FY2024; 10.00% FY 2025+FY2026; and 5.00% in Succssive Years: Subect to Change to Comply with Adopted Rate Policy/Resolution.

BRADLEY AND POLK COUNTIES, TENNESSEE
SUMMARY OF HISTORICAL AND PROFORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENT + DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIOS

(FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30)

THE OCOEE UTILITY DISTRICT OF 













waller
Waller Lansden Dortch & Davis, LLP

511 Union Street, Suite 2700 615.244.6380 main

P.O. Box 198966 615.244.6804 fax

Nashville, TN 37219-8966 walleriaw.com

Alexander B. Buchanan

615.850.8628 direct

aiex.buchanan@waiieriaw.com

January 27, 2022

VIA EMAIL @ Sandi.Thompson@cot.tn.gov

Ms. Sandi Thompson
TLDA Assistant Secretary and Director of
the Division of State Government Finance

425 Rep. John Lewis Way, N.
Nashville, TN 37243

Re: City of Algood, Tennessee

Dear Ms. Thompson:

The City of Algood, Tennessee (the "City") has an outstanding State Revolving Fund loan,
with an application date of August 11, 2009 (the "Loan") from the Tennessee Local Development
Authority ("TLDA"). The Loan is secured by, among others, a pledge of user fees and charges
from its water and sewer system. My understanding is that the balance of this Loan, as of June
30, 2021, was approximately $1,090,944.

The City has received a commitment from the United States Department of Agriculture
to purchase the City's $1,890,000 Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Deficiency Bond (the
"Bond") to finance improvements for the City's water and sewer system. My understanding is
that, prior to issuing the Bond, the City is obligated under its loan agreement with TLDA (or the
rules and regulations promulgated thereunder) to provide notice of the issuance of debt
contemplated to be secured by a lien on the revenues of the City's water and sewer system. In
the authorizing resolution for the Bond, the City specifically will acknowledge that the lien
securing the Bond will be subordinate to the lien granted in favor of TLDA securing the Loan.

I would ask that this information be provided to TLDA in satisfaction of any notice
requirements of TLDA under the loan agreement and the regulations issued thereunder. Please
let me know if TLDA needs any additional information. As the City may issue the Bond as soon
as February 9, 2022,1 would appreciate being notified before then if this notice is not sufficient,
or if any additional information is needed to satisfy the requirements of TLDA.

Thank you in advance for your anticipated cooperation.

Very truly yours.

Alexander B. Buchanan

ABB:cty
cc: Keith Morrison

keith.morrison@algoodtn.gov

4882-1008-1035.1




